

**Greater London Authority Group**  
**Summary Statement of Accounts 2010-11**

**GREATER LONDON AUTHORITY**



## **Contents**

	Page
Introduction	3
Independent Auditor's Statement to the Greater London Authority	6
Income & Expenditure Summary	7
Movement in Reserves Statement	9
Capital Expenditure & Financing	11
London Pensions Fund Authority Summary Pension Fund Account	12
Further Information	13

## Introduction

This summary contains information from the Greater London Authority (GLA), its Functional Bodies and the London Pension Fund Agency's (LPFA) Statements of Accounts for 2010/11. The information summarises how the Greater London Authority, the Functional Bodies and the London Pension Fund Authority spent the money they received during the year and the reserves position at 31 March 2011.

This Summary Statement of Accounts is prepared under s134 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999. Each organisation reported herein prepares its own detailed accounts separately. Copies of the full accounts may be obtained by contacting the individual bodies, whose contact details are at the end of this document or by clicking on the hyper links embedded in this document.

The **main responsibilities** of each functional body of the Greater London Authority are:

Metropolitan Police Authority (MPA)	Responsible for the Metropolitan Police Service, covering all of London, except for the City of London
London Fire & Emergency Planning Authority (LFEPA)	Responsible for the London Fire Brigade
Transport for London (TfL)	Transport links, including major roads, underground, buses, Docklands Light Railway, London Overground and Crossrail
London Development Agency (LDA)	The Mayor's agency for delivering sustainable economic growth

The **relationship** between the GLA and each of the functional bodies is set out below:

The **LDA** is a Regional Development Agency and a functional body of the GLA. The Mayor appoints the LDA Board and the Mayor may give directions and guidance in relation to the exercise of the LDA's functions. The Government approves an annual grant to the LDA and imposes conditions on its usage. However, the Mayor determines the LDA's budget requirement and borrowing limits. The LDA has consolidated SME Wholesale Finance Ltd as a subsidiary in its Statement of Accounts.

The **LFEPA** is a functional body of the GLA. The Mayor appoints all LFEPA's 17 Members and chooses one of them to be the Chairman of the Authority. Eight are nominated from the London Assembly, seven from the London Boroughs and two Mayoral appointees. The Mayor has the power to give LFEPA directions and guidance. The Mayor is responsible for setting LFEPA's budget requirement and borrowing limits.

The **MPA** is a functional body of the GLA. The MPA comprises 12 London Assembly members, appointed to the Authority by the Mayor of London, and 11 Independent members. The Mayor is the direct line of accountability between the Metropolitan Police Service and the people of London and he appoints the Chair and Vice chair of the MPA. A key duty of the MPA is to secure the maintenance of an efficient and effective police service for its area. The Mayor is responsible for setting the MPA's budget requirement and borrowing limits.

The **TfL** is a functional body of the GLA and is a statutory corporation. The Mayor is the Chairman of TfL's Board and appoints the Board's membership. The Mayor is responsible for setting fares, TfL's budget requirement and borrowing limits. The legal structure of TfL comprises:

- the Corporation, which is made up of London Streets, the Public Carriage Office and the corporate centre which for legal and accounting purposes, constitutes TfL; and
- the TfL Group which is made up of the Corporation and its subsidiaries, which are summarised below:

The TfL Group's principal subsidiaries are:

<b>Subsidiaries</b>	<b>Principal activity</b>
Transport Trading Limited	Holding company
London Underground Limited	Passenger transport by underground train
LUL Nominee BCV Limited	Maintenance of underground lines
LUL Nominee SSL Limited	Maintenance of underground lines
Tube Lines (Holdings) Limited	Holding company
Tube Lines Limited	Holding company
Tube Lines (Finance) Plc	Financing company
UIC (Transport) Limited	Financing company
Rail for London Limited	Passenger transport by rail
Docklands Light Railway Limited	Passenger transport by rail
Tramtrack Croydon Limited	Passenger transport by tram
London Bus Services Limited	Passenger transport by bus
London Buses Limited	Bus operator and Dial-a-Ride
Victoria Coach Station Limited	Coach station
London River Services Limited	Pier operator
Crossrail Limited	Construction of Crossrail infrastructure
Transport for London Finance Limited	Manages financial risk of the Group
London Transport Museum Limited	Charitable company
London Transport Museum (Trading) Limited	Trading company
London Transport Insurance (Guernsey) Limited	Insurance

The TfL Group holds 100 per cent of the share capital of all subsidiaries. The financial statements of these companies are lodged at Companies House and also at the Charity Commission for the London Transport Museum Limited. The statutory financial statements for the subsidiary companies for the period ended 31 March 2011 all received unqualified audit opinions.

### **London Pensions Fund Authority**

Whilst not a functional body of the Greater London Authority, the Greater London Authority Act 1999 gives the Mayor certain powers in relation to the London Pensions Fund Authority, such as appointing members to the LPFA board.

*M.D. Clarke*

*1.3.12*

---

**Martin Clarke**  
Executive Director, Resources  
Greater London Authority

Date:

## **Independent Auditor's Statement to the Greater London Authority**









Capital Expenditure

	2010/11					2009/10					Group Total	
	Group Total					£m					2009/10	
	GLA	LDA	LFEPAs	MPA	TFL Corporate	GLA	LDA	LFEPAs	MPA	TFL Corporate	£m	
Intangible Fixed Asset Additions	-	-	0	1	8	9	0	-	1	3	109	113
Tangible Fixed Asset Additions	1	81	38	187	424	731	1	127	21	184	553	886
Capital Grants	1,002	118	-	-	1,705	2,825	3	1.9	-	-	1,806	1,828
Investments	-	-	-	-	450	450	-	-	-	-	-	-
Long Term Debtors	-	17	-	-	-	17	-	-	1.9	-	-	19
Loans to TfL Subsidiaries	-	-	-	-	2,225	2,225	-	-	-	-	875	875
<b>Total Capital Expenditure</b>	<b>1,003</b>	<b>216</b>	<b>38</b>	<b>188</b>	<b>4,812</b>	<b>6,257</b>	<b>4</b>	<b>165</b>	<b>22</b>	<b>187</b>	<b>3,343</b>	<b>3,721</b>

## London Pensions Fund Authority Summary

### Pension Fund Account

	<u>2009-10</u>	<u>2010-11</u>
	£m	£m
<b>Dealings with members, employers and others directly involved in the Fund</b>		
Contributions	193	191
Transfers in from other pension funds	34	25
	<u>227</u>	<u>216</u>
Benefits	(227)	(232)
Payment to and on account of leavers	(23)	(49)
Administration expenses	(6)	(6)
	<u>(256)</u>	<u>(287)</u>
<b>Net additions/(withdrawals) from dealings with members</b>	<b>(29)</b>	<b>(71)</b>
<b>Returns on investments:</b>		
Investment income	31	46
Taxes on income	(1)	(1)
Profit and losses on disposal of investment and changes in the market value of investments	821	304
Investment management expenses	(8)	(7)
<b>Net return on investments</b>	<b>843</b>	<b>342</b>
<b>Net increase in the net assets available for benefits during the year</b>	<b>814</b>	<b>271</b>
<b>Net Asset Statement for the year ended 31 March 2011</b>		
	<u>2009-10</u>	<u>2010-11</u>
	£m	£m
Investment assets	3,731	4,013
Cash Deposits	109	13
	<u>3,840</u>	<u>4,026</u>
Investments in Associates	13	19
Investment liabilities	(20)	(11)
Current assets	37	104
Current liabilities	15	(11)
<b>Net assets of the Fund available to the fund benefits at the period end</b>	<b>3,885</b>	<b>4,127</b>

## **Further Information**

Electronic copies of this document are held on our website at  
<http://www.london.gov.uk/who-runs-london/greater-london-authority/accounts-information>

Further information, including the full audited accounts, may be obtained from:

### **Greater London Authority**

[www.london.gov.uk](http://www.london.gov.uk)

Telephone: 020 7983 4100 Fax: 020 7983 4057  
Minicom: 020 7983 4458

Public Liaison Unit, Greater London Authority, City Hall, The Queen's Walk, More London, London SE1 2AA  
Auditor: Audit Commission

For Full Audited Accounts please use link to the right: [\*\*GLA 2010-11 Audited Accounts\*\*](#)

### **London Development Agency**

[www.lda.gov.uk](http://www.lda.gov.uk)

Telephone: 020 7593 9000 Fax: 020 7593 8001  
Public Liaison Unit, London Development Agency, Palestra, 197 Blackfriars Road, London SE1 8AA  
Auditor: Audit Commission

For Full Audited Accounts please use link to the right: [\*\*LDA 2010-11 Audited Accounts\*\*](#)

### **London Fire & Emergency Planning Authority**

[www.london-fire.gov.uk](http://www.london-fire.gov.uk)

Telephone: 020 8555 1200  
London Fire & Emergency Planning Authority, 169 Union Street, London SE1 0LL  
Auditor: Audit Commission

For Full Audited Accounts please use link to the right: [\*\*LFEPA 2010-11 Audited Accounts\*\*](#)

### **Metropolitan Police Authority**

[www.mpa.gov.uk](http://www.mpa.gov.uk)

Telephone: 020 7202 0202 Fax: 020 7202 0200  
Minicom: 020 7202 0173

Metropolitan Police Authority, 10 Dean Farrar Street, London SW1H 0NY  
Auditor: Audit Commission

For Full Audited Accounts please use link to the right: [\*\*MPA 2010-11 Audited Accounts\*\*](#)

### **Transport for London**

[www.tfl.gov.uk](http://www.tfl.gov.uk)

Telephone: 020 7222 5600  
Transport for London, Windsor House, 42-50 Victoria Street, London SW1H 0TL  
Auditor: KPMG LLP

For Full Audited Accounts please use link to the right: [\*\*TfL 2010-11 Audited Accounts\*\*](#)

### **London Pensions Fund Authority**

[www.lpfa.org.uk](http://www.lpfa.org.uk)

Telephone: 0845 3030335 Fax: 020 7369 6111  
Minicom: 020 7369 6119

London Pensions Fund Authority, Dexter House, 2 Royal Mint Court, London EC3N 4LP  
Auditor: Audit Commission

For Full Audited Accounts please use link to the right: [\*\*LPFA 2010-11 Audited Accounts\*\*](#)

